
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Lauren M. Lepkoski, Esq. 
(610) 921-6203
(330) 315-9263 (Fax)

January 15, 2021 

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Aida Camacho-Welch, Secretary 
New Jersey Board of Public Utilities 
44 South Clinton Street 
3rd Floor Suite 314 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Re: IN THE MATTER OF THE VERIFIED PETITION OF JERSEY CENTRAL 
POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF 
INCREASES IN AND OTHER ADJUSTMENTS TO ITS RATES AND 
CHARGES FOR ELECTRIC SERVICE, AND FOR APPROVAL OF 
OTHER PROPOSED TARIFF REVISIONS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH (“2020 BASE RATE FILING”) 
BPU Docket No. ER20020146 

Dear Secretary Camacho-Welch: 

Pursuant to Paragraph 24 of the Stipulation of Settlement entered into by the parties and 
approved by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (“Board”) on October 28, 2020, Jersey 
Central Power & Light Company (“JCP&L” or the “Company”) is submitting a written report for 
Reliability Plus (“RP”) projects placed in service from July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, 
with the following information for each of the RP projects: (i) the IIP category/project; (ii) the 
overall budgeted cost; (iii) expenditures through December 31, 2020; (iv) appropriate metric; and 
(v) components "in service" through December 31, 2020.”

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

Lauren M. Lepkoski 
Enclosures 
cc: Certificate of Service 



i ii iii iv v

IIP Program Category / 
Project

Overall Approved 
Program

7/1/2020 Through 
12/31/2020

6/1/2019 Through 
12/31/2020 Metric

In Service 
7/1/2020 
Through 

12/31/2020

In Service 
6/1/2019 
Through 

12/31/2020
Circuit Reliability and 
Resiliency $55,127,636 $10,629,821 $54,883,609 

Lateral Fuse Replacement 
with TripSaver II $10,382,107 $1,302,696 $11,962,406 Number of TripSaver II project 

components 9 777 

Zone 2 Enhancement 
Vegetation Management $44,745,529 $9,327,125 $42,921,203 Number of circuits with Zone 2 

clearance 74 222 

Substation Reliability 
Enhancement $16,124,620 $6,790,868 $18,741,135 

Number of substation flood wall 
components 1 2 

Number of pumps 1 2 

Substation Equipment 
Replacement (Switchgear) $3,693,750 $1,479,547 $6,022,381 Number of substation 

switchgear 1 4 

Mobile Substation Purchase $2,200,000 $2,405,147 $2,405,147 Number of mobile substations 1 1 

Modernize Protective 
Equipment $5,512,822 $958,731 $6,386,683 Number of relays 7 50 

Distribution Automation $25,757,664 $12,029,943 $23,454,639 

Circuit Protection and 
Sectionalization $5,237,236 $1,831,917 $4,317,248 Number of relays 26 68 

Install SCADA Line Devices $15,347,560 $4,195,524 $11,886,350 Number of SCADA line devices 73 252 

Distribution Automation 
(Loop Schemes) $3,545,368 $1,154,327 $2,402,867 Number of loop scheme project 

components 11 16 

RTU Upgrades in 
Substations $1,627,500 $4,848,175 $4,848,175 Number of RTUs 6 6 

IIP Program Total $97,009,920 $29,450,632 $97,079,384 

$3,926,923 $4,718,048 Substation Enhanced Flood 
Mitigation

Per paragraph 24 of the Stipulation of Settlement approved by the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities on October 28, 2020, "the parties agree that the 
Company does not need to make the following filings listed in the Board-approved Stipulation in Docket No. EO18070728; (1) Initial Filing (October 15, 2020); 
and (2) Update for Actuals (January 15, 2021). Instead, the Company will submit a written report by January 15, 2021, for Reliability Plus projects placed in 
service from July 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, with the following information for each of the RP projects: (i) the IIP category/project; (ii) the overall 
budgeted cost; (iii) expenditures through December 31, 2020; (iv) appropriate metric; and (v) components "in service" through December 31,2020.”

$1,947,443 
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SERVICE LIST 
 
Board of Public Utilities 
 
Aida Camacho-Welch 
Secretary of the Board 
board.secretary@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Paul Flanagan, Esq. 
Executive Director 
paul.flanagan@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Robert Brabston, Esq., 
Deputy Executive Director 
robert.brabston@bpu.nj.gov 
 
New Jersey Division of Rate Counsel: 
 
Stefanie A. Brand, Esq., Director 
sbrand@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Brian Lipman, Esq., 
Litigation Manager 
blipman@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Ami Morita, Esq. 
amorita@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Maura Caroselli, Esq. 
mcaroselli@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Brian Weeks, Esq. 
bweeks@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Maria Novas-Ruiz, Esq. 
mnovas-ruiz@rpa.nj.gov 
 
T. David Wand, Esq. 
dwand@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Kurt S. Lewandowski 
klewando@rpa.nj.gov 
 

Debora Layugan, Paralegal 
dlayugan@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Tylise Hyman 
thyman@rpa.nj.gov 
 
Rate Counsel Consultants 
 
Susan Baldwin 
smbaldwinconsulting@gmail.com 
 
Dante Mugrace 
PCMG and Associates 
dmugrace@pcmgregcon.com 
 
Max Chang Synapse 
mchang@synapse-energy.com 
 
Charles Salamone Cape Power Systems 
csalamone@capepowersystems.com 
 
Counsel’s Office 
 
Abe Silverman, Esq. 
General Counsel 
abe.silverman@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Carol Artale, Esq. 
Deputy General Counsel 
carol.artale@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Heather Weisband, 
Senior Counsel 
heather.weisband@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Division of Energy 
Stacy Peterson, Director 
stacy.peterson@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Paul Lupo, Chief 
paul.lupo@bpu.nj.gov 
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Ryan Moran 
ryan.moran@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Jacqueline Galka 
jacqueline.galka@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Bart Kilar 
bart.kilar@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Beverly Tyndell 
beverly.tyndell@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Oneil Hamilton 
oneil.hamilton@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Scott Sumliner 
scott.sumliner@bpu.nj.gov 
 
David Brown 
david.brown@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Dean Taklif 
dean.taklif@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Cindy Bianco 
cindy.bianco@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Marlon Griffing, Ph.D. 
PCMG and Associates 
mgriffing@pcmgregcon.com 
 
David Peterson 
Chesapeake Reg. Consultants, Inc. 
davep@chesapeake.net 
 
Commercial Metals Company 
 
Murray Bevan, Esq. 
mbevan@bmg.law 
Katherine M. Dailey 
kdailey@bmg.law 
 
Jennifer McCave 
jmccave@bmg.law 
 
 

WALMART Inc. 
 
Donald R. Wagner, Esq. 
drw@stevenslee.com 
 
Linda R. Evers, Esq. 
lre@stevenslee.com 
 
Lisa V. Perry, Senior Manager, 
lisa.perry@walmart.com 
 
Economist Office 
 
Benjamin Witherell, Chief Economist 
benjamin.witherell@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Dr. Son Lin Lai 
son-lin.lai@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Jackie O’Grady 
jackie.ogrady@bpu.nj.gov 
 
Division of Law 
 
Pamela Owen, ASC, 
pamela.owen@law.njoag.gov 
 
Michael Beck, 
michael.beck@law.njoag.gov 
 
Matko Ilic, 
matko.ilic@law.njoag.gov 
 
Daren Eppley, 
daren.eppley@law.njoag.gov 
 
Terel Klein 
terel.klein@law.njoag.gov 
 
DOD/FEA 
 
John J. McNutt 
john.j.mcnutt.civ@mail.mil 
 
Kenneth J. Hanko, Esq. 
kenneth.j.hanko.civ@mail.mil 
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New Jersey Large Energy Users Coalition 
 
Steven Goldenberg, Esq. 
sgoldenberg@ghclaw.com 
 
Paul F. Forshay, Esq. 
paulforshay@eversheds-sutherland.us 
 
Jersey Central Power & Light Company  
 
Mark Mader 
mamader@firstenergycorp.com 
 
Joshua R. Eckert, Esq. 
jeckert@firstenergycorp.com 
 
James E. O’Toole 
jotoole@firstenergycorp.com 
  
Lauren M. Lepkoski, Esq. 
llepkoski@firstenergycorp.com 
 
Cozen O’Connor 
 
Gregory Eisenstark, Esq. 
geisenstark@cozen.com 
 
Michael J. Connolly, Esq. 
mconnolly@cozen.com 
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